
SANTA BARBARA COUNTY EDUCATION OFFICE
PERSONNEL COMMISSION

4400 Cathedral Oaks Road
P.O. Box 6307

Santa Barbara, CA 93160-6307

REGULAR MEETING
October 24, 2024 – 12:30 p.m. 

DRAFT MINUTES

GENERAL FUNCTIONS 

1. Call to Order

Carmen Jaramillo called the meeting to order at 12:30 p.m.

2. Roll Call

Members present:
Carmen Jaramillo, Vice Chair
Mike Ostini, Commissioner

Member absent:
Gary Pickavet (due to illness)

3. Pledge of Allegiance

Carmen Jaramillo led the Pledge of Allegiance.

4. Changes to the Agenda

It was agreed to defer agenda item 12 to the next month’s meeting so that all the
Commissioners could participate in the discussion.

5. Introduction of Staff and Guests

Staff present:
Amy Ramos, Director, Human Resources
Tracie Cordero, Classified Human Resources Specialist
Wendy Garcia, Certificated Human Resources Technician
Gabriel Purvis, Classified Human Resources Analyst

6. Public Comment — None

AGENDA ITEM 7



Personnel Commission Draft Minutes – October 24, 2024 Page 2 

7. Approval of Minutes of Regular Meeting Held September 26, 2024

MOVED: Mike Ostini SECONDED: Carmen Jaramillo VOTE: 2-0 

8. Communications

The Commissioners received a memo from Superintendent Salcido formally
notifying them of the action taken by the County Board of Education related to
Commissioner Pickavet’s term on the Commission (see item 13).

9. Informational Items

a. Media Releases/Editorials

The Director, Human Resources summarized media releases from the
County Superintendent’s Office about a workforce housing panel
discussion hosted by SBCEO on September 23, and about an award
SBCEO’s Partners in Education non-profit won from the California School
Boards Association for their Job Readiness & Internship Program, which
connects high school students from across our county with hands-on job
training and internship opportunities, helping them develop essential skills
for their future careers. HR supports this program by making presentations
to participating students informing them of their rights in the workplace.

b. Legislative Update

The Director, Human Resources provided the Commissioners with a
summary of AB 2561, which the Governor signed into law in September.
This will require all public agencies to present on the status of their
vacancies in a public hearing before their governing body at least once per
fiscal year. The Director noted that she and the Associate Superintendent
of Human Resources had made presentations to the County Board the
last few years about the state of the education workforce.

REGULAR BUSINESS

10. Informational Items

a. List of New Positions

b. Classified Personnel Report dated November 14, 2024



Personnel Commission Draft Minutes – October 24, 2024 Page 3 

c. Position Announcement

i. Payroll Supervisor (Dual – Santa Barbara)

11. Action Items

b. Ratification of Eligibility Lists

i. Early Care and Education Case Worker, Mixteco Required
(Dual – Santa Maria)

ii. Office Assistant (Promotional – Santa Maria)
iii. Paraeducator (Open Continuous – North)
iv. Paraeducator (Open Continuous – South)

MOVED: Mike Ostini SECONDED: Carmen Jaramillo VOTE: 2-0 

c. Classification of Positions — None

d. Job Descriptions — None

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

12. Discussion of Open Continuous Eligibility Lists (deferred from September
meeting)

This was deferred until the November meeting.

13. Organization of the Personnel Commission

In accordance with Education Code 45246, a public hearing was held at the
October 10 County Board of Education meeting, and the Board reappointed
Commissioner Pickavet to another three-year term, beginning December 1,
2024.

NEW BUSINESS

14. Quarterly Review of Personnel Commission Budget

The Director, Human Resources presented a statement of expenditures for the
first quarter of the 2024-25 fiscal year, from July 1, 2024 through September 30,
2024, as an information item.



Personnel Commission Draft Minutes – October 24, 2024 Page 4 

15. Revision of Merit System Rules – Presented for First Reading

a. 4441.5 Disqualification of Applicants, Candidates and Eligibles
b. 4441.6 Disqualification and Appeal from Disqualification
c. 4451.8 Removal of Names from Eligibility List

Because the proposed revisions to these rules are related to item 12, it was 
agreed to defer discussion to the November meeting so that all the 
Commissioners could participate in the discussion 

REPORTS

16. PERSONNEL COMMISSIONER REPORTS

Commissioner Ostini had no PC-related items to report.

Commissioner Jaramillo had no PC-related items to report.

17. DIRECTOR, HUMAN RESOURCES REPORT

The Director reported that:

SBCEO has implemented a new orientation process for all new hires that
includes a departmental orientation on the new hire’s first day (with instructional
staff receiving a departmental overview first instead of reporting directly to their
classroom) and an in-person orientation at Cathedral Oaks. The in-person
sessions at Cathedral Oaks are scheduled to take place approximately monthly
and will feature a general presentation made by either the County
Superintendent or an Associate Superintendent, followed by breakout sessions
for classified, certificated, and managers. The breakout sessions will be
conducted by HR staff. The inaugural session took place October 9, with a small
group of new managers. It is expected that future sessions will be a mix of mostly
classified, with some certificated staff and managers. The intent of the new
orientation process is to provide a standardized orientation experience for all new
hires, set them up for success, help them understand SBCEO organization and
culture, and foster a sense of connection.

Santa Maria Joint Union High School District has withdrawn their notice of intent
to take back a DHH classroom. That program, and its staff, will stay with SBCEO.
At this time, it is anticipated that the Lompoc preschool transfer will move
forward.

She and Tracie Cordero had attended an online meeting with California
Department of Education Awards and Communications staff to prepare for the
Classified School Employee of the Year process. They informed us that they will
open up the nomination period in January, which we hope will give districts more
time to submit nominations. CDE appears to be providing a much higher level of



Personnel Commission Draft Minutes – October 24, 2024 Page 5 

support to CSEY coordinators than in past years, which is appreciated. 

She had completed Title IX compliance training on the new regulations that went
into effect August 1.

She had attended a CASBO leadership workshop on October 22, put on by a
new chapter serving the Tri-Counties. The presentations were excellent.

SBCEO is implementing an employee badge policy. All SBCEO employees, as
well as SBCEO-affiliated individuals providing services, will be issued photo ID
badges and will be required to wear them at all times while at work.

18. CALIFORNIA SCHOOL EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION REPORT

The Director, Human Resources reported that Labor Relations Representative
Carlos Lopez was leaving for another position within CSEA and that Mitchell
Stewart had been appointed as the new representative on a temporary basis.

CLOSED SESSION — None scheduled

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 1:12 p.m. The next 
regular meeting will be held on Thursday, November 21, 2024, at 12:30 p.m. The 
meeting will be held in the Santa Barbara County Education Office Board Room, Santa 
Barbara and will also be available via videoconference at the Santa Barbara County 
Education Office Board Room, Santa Maria. 

______________________________ _____________________________
Amy R. Ramos Carmen Jaramillo 
Director, Human Resources
Secretary to the Personnel Commission 

Vice Chair, Personnel Commission
(presiding in the absence of the Chair)



Position Information

Oct 19, 2024 through Nov 15, 2024

Position #

AGENDA ITEM 10a



AGENDA ITEM 10b











AGENDA ITEM 10(c)i









AGENDA ITEM 10(c)ii











AGENDA ITEM 10(c)iii









AGENDA ITEM 10(c)iv









AGENDA ITEM 11(a)i



AGENDA ITEM 11(a)ii



AGENDA ITEM 11(a)iii





AGENDA ITEM 11(a)iv



AGENDA ITEM 13a - current



AGENDA ITEM 13a - proposed revision, 
changes tracked



Personnel Series 4000 

4400 The Merit System

4440 Application and Examination 

4441 Application for Employment

4441.5 Disqualification of Applicants, Candidates, and Eligibles

A. An applicant, candidate, or eligible may be refused examination, disqualified from
an examination, removed from an eligibility list, or have a job offer withdrawn for any of
the following reasons:

1. Failure to meet the general qualifications of Rule No. 4441.4

2. Making a false statement or omitting any material fact on any SBCEO
employment application.

3. Conviction whether by a plea of guilty or nolo contendere, a court decision, or
a jury verdict for a sex or controlled substance offense, as defined in Education
Code Sections 44010 or 44011, or for a violent or serious felony, as defined in
Education Code 45122.

4. Deception or fraud in connection with an examination or to secure employment.

5. Previous dismissal for cause from the Santa Barbara County Education Office.

6. Ineligibility of the applicant, candidate, or eligible for rehire in accordance with 
SBCEO policy.

7. Failure to pass the pre-employment physical examination required for the position.

8. Failure to report for duty after a position has been offered and accepted.

9. Failure to comply with required hiring procedures.

10. Status as a retired annuitant in the California State Teachers Retirement System or the

11. Violation of the provisions of Education Code Section 45310 regarding authorized
payment of salary or wage.

12. Failure to respond to due notice for review of any of the above reasons for
disqualification (due notice means by telephone, personal contact, or United States
mail).

Reference:
Education Code Sections 44010, 44011, 45122-45124, 45134, 45260-45261 and 45310

Approved: October 20, 1975 
Revised: August 26, 1982 

August 31, 1992 
November 21, 2024 (pending approval) 

AGENDA ITEM 13a - proposed revision, 
changes saved



AGENDA ITEM 13b - current



AGENDA ITEM 13b - proposed revision, 
changes tracked



Personnel Series 4000 

4400 The Merit System

4440 Application and Examination 

4441 Application for Employment

4441.6 Notice and Appeal of Disqualification

A. Applicants, candidates, and eligibles who are disqualified for any of the reasons
enumerated in Rule No. 4441.5 shall be notified in writing by the Director, Human
Resources. The notification shall state:

1. The reason(s) for disqualification.

2. That, within seven calendar days, the individual may appeal to the Director,
Human Resources for administrative review, and that failure to appeal for
administrative review makes the disqualification final and conclusive.

B. If there has been an administrative review, as provided above, and the disqualification is
sustained, the individual shall be:

1. Provided a written notice outlining the reason(s) for sustaining the
disqualification, and

2. Informed of their right to make a written appeal of the disqualification and/or the
period of disqualification, within seven calendar days, to the Personnel
Commission. The appeal may be based on any of the following reasons:

a. Discrimination on the basis of political or religious acts, affiliations,
or opinions; race; color; sex; marital status; national origin or ancestry;
or any other characteristic protected by state or federal law.

b. Abuse of discretion.

c. Factual dispute as to the reasons provided for the disqualification.

C. Upon receipt of an appeal, the Commission shall set a date for hearing, hear all of the
evidence, and render a decision. Its decision shall be transmitted in writing to all concerned,
as determined by the Commission, and shall be final.

D. If a disqualification is not sustained by the Director, Human Resources or the Personnel
Commission, the Director, Human Resources shall immediately institute action to ensure
the rights of the applicant, candidate, or eligible . However, appointments made in the
interim shall not be modified unless they were fraudulently made.

Reference:
Education Code Sections 44010, 44011, 45122-45124, 45134, and 45260-45261

Approved: October 20, 1975 
Revised: August 26, 1982 

August 31, 1992 
November 21, 2024 (pending approval) 

AGENDA ITEM 13b - proposed revision, 
changes saved



AGENDA ITEM 13c - current



AGENDA ITEM 13c - proposed revision, 
changes tracked



Approved: 
Revised:

October 20, 1975
March 24, 1983
April 22, 1993
November 21, 2024 (pending approval)

PERSONNEL Series 4000

4400 The Merit System

4450 Employment Lists

4451 Eligibility Lists

4451.8 Removal of Names From Eligibility Lists

A. The name of an eligible may be removed from an eligibility list by the Director, Human
Resources, subject to appeal to the Personnel Commission, for any of the following reasons:

1. A request by the eligible to be removed;

2. Failing to respond within five working days to an invitation to a hiring interview;

3. Declining an invitation to a hiring interview;

4. For cause as established by Personnel Commission Rule (See Personnel
Commission Rule 4441.5, Disqualification of Applicants, Candidates, and
Eligibles)

5. Termination of employment when on a promotional eligibility list;

6. Refusing an offer of regular employment in the classification for which the
individual is on the eligibility list.

Reference:
Education Code Section 45272 and 45300

AGENDA ITEM 13c - proposed revision, 
changes saved



 2023-2024 PERSONNEL COMMISSION ANNUAL REPORT

2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24
PERSONNEL ACTIONS RECRUITMENT
Appointments Examinations
Probationary 49 57 65 Recruitments Conducted 53 61 75
Management 8 6 4 Applications 623 826 943
Reemployments 3 1 0 Written/Work Sample Examinations 37 46 34
Reinstatements 2 0 0 Oral Examinations 29 32 21
Changes Performance Examinations 0 0 0
Transfers 12 8 14 Qualification Appraisals 4 3 0
Reassignments 1 5 10 Eligibles Established 136 169 159
Out-of-Class Assignments 2 2 0 Eligibility Lists Established 43 45 40
Promotions 4 16 14 Continuous Examinations **
Reclassifications and Reallocations 2 23 111 Applications 395 203 292
Decreased Time in Lieu of Layoff 4 1 0 Written Examinations 6 4 5
Displacement in Lieu of Layoff 0 0 0 Oral Examinations 8 2 2
Demotion Displacement In Lieu of Lay 0 0 0 Qualification Appraisals* 5 5 6
Increase Time (Voluntary) 10 13 29 Eligibles Established 49 65 57
Decreased Time (Voluntary) 0 3 2 Eligibility Lists Established 35 8 27

ACTIVE CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES AS OF FISCAL YEAR END
Separation CSEA Classified Employees 131 152 127
Resignations 29 40 43 Non-CSEA Classified Employees 110 130 135
Retirements 10 8 7 Classified Managers 28 29 32
Exhausted Leave 1 2 1
Layoffs 0 4 3 ACTIVE CLASSIFIED SUBSTITUTES AS OF FISCAL YEAR END
Terminations (probationary) 3 3 6 Classified Substitutes 71 71 88
Terminations (permanent) 0 0 0
OTHER ACTIONS REEMPLOYMENT
New Classifications 8 5 6 Total Individuals 10 1 5
Revised Job Descriptions 16 10 8 Total Removed 9 3 1
Salary Reviews N/A 10 8
Revised PC Rules 1 5 12 PERSONNEL COMMISSION MEETINGS

Regular 12 12 12
Special 5 3 0

aAGENDA ITEM 14


	14 23-24 PC Annual Report, final.pdf
	Sheet1

	14 23-24 PC Annual Report, final.pdf
	Sheet1




